Public Document Pack

A Y
CAERPHILLY

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CLCYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

CAERFFIL)Y
> 4

Gwent Public Services Board Scrutiny Committee - Wednesday, 11th September,
2024 2.00 pm



Stephen Vickers, _Public Document Pack
Joint Chief Executive / Cyd-Brif Weithredwr

;/"b;fh;'
\

E:committee.services@blaenau-gwent.gov.uk Cyngor Burdeistref Sirol

Blaenau Gwent

Our Ref./Ein Cyf.
Your Ref./Eich Cyf.
Contact:/Cysylltwch a:

| THIS IS A MEETING WHICH THE PUBLIC ARE ENTITLED TO ATTEND |

5t September 2024
Dear Sir/Madam

GWENT PUBLIC SERVICES BOARD SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

A meeting of the Gwent Public Services Board Scrutiny Committee will be held
in via MS Teams on Wednesday, 11th September, 2024 at 2.00 pm. (if you
wish to view this meeting please contact michelle.hicks@blaenau-
gwent.gov.uk).

Yours faithfully

Stephen Vickers
Joint Chief Executive

AGENDA Pages

1. SIMULTANEOUS TRANSLATION

You are welcome to use Welsh at the meeting a
minimum notice period of 3 working days is required
should you wish to do so. A simultaneous translation
will be provided if requested.

General Offices Swyddfeydd Cyffredinol
Steelworks Road Heol Gwaith Dur

Tyllwyn, Ebbw Ty Liwyn, Glyn Ebwy
Vale NP23 6DN NP23 6DN



mailto:committee.services@blaenau-gwent.gov.uk

To:

APOLOGIES

To receive.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND
DISPENSATIONS

To receive any declarations of interest and dispensation.

GWENT PUBLIC SERVICES BOARD SCRUTINY S)
COMMITTEE

1
(00)

To consider the decisions of the meeting held on 17t
April, 2024.

(N.B. The decisions are submitted for accuracy
points only).

GWENT WELL-BEING PLAN ANNUAL REPORT 9-28

To consider the report.

GWENT PUBLIC SERVICES BOARD DELIVERY 29 - 46
FRAMEWORK : BEST START IN LIFE

To consider the report.

APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRPERSON AND VICE- 47 - 48
CHAIRPERSON OF THE GWENT PUBLIC SERVICES
BOARD SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

To consider the report.

Councillor T. Smith
Councillor E. Jones
Councillor Evans
Councillor J. Morgan, J.P.
Peter Farley

Councillor Angel
Councillor Williams
Councillor Hussain
Councillor Stowell-Corten
Councillor Jones
Councillor Watts
Councillor Seabourne
Councillor Williams

All other Members (for informatl%?ﬁ? 2
Page 2



Joint Chief Executive
Chief Officers

Page 3

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



Agenda ltem 4

COUNTY BOROUGH OF BLAENAU GWENT

REPORT TO: THE CHAIR AND MEMBERS OF THE
GWENT PUBLIC SERVICES BOARD
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

SUBJECT: GWENT PUBLIC SERVICES BOARD
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - 17™ APRIL, 2024
REPORT OF: DEMOCRATIC & COMMITTEE SUPPORT OFFICER
PRESENT: COUNCILLOR T. SMITH (BGCBC) (CHAIR)

Blaenau Gwent
Councillor E. Jones

Torfaen
Councillor D.H. Williams
Councillor R. Seabourne

Monmouthshire
Councillor P. Jones
Councillor A. Watts

Caerphill
Councillor A. Angel

Councillor S. Williams

Newport CC
Councillor F. Hussain

WITH: Aneurin Bevan University Health Board
Joanne Foley

South Wales Fire & Rescue
Steve O’Connell

Natural Resource Wales
Juliet Michael

Page 5

Page 5



Blaenau Gwent CBC
Sarah King

Andrew Parker
David Arnold

Liz Thomas

Torfaen CBC
Rebecca Fahey-Jones
Kelly Hayes

Monmouthshire CBC
Sharran Lloyd
Robert McGowan
Hazel llett

Richard Jones

Newport CC
Wayne Tucker
Leanne Rowlands

Caerphilly CBC
Heather Delonette
Cath Forbes-Thompson

ITEM | SUBJECT

No.1 | SIMULTANEOUS TRANSLATION

It was noted that no requests had been received for the
simultaneous translation service.

No.2 |APOLOGIES

The following apologies for absence were reported:-

Councillor Jen Morgan
Peter Farley

Stephen Tiley

Rani Dash

Eryl Powell

Page

Page 6



No. 3

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS

No declarations of interest or dispensations were reported.

No. 4

GWENT PUBLIC SERVICES BOARD SCRUTINY

COMMITTEE

Consideration was given to the decisions of the Committee held on
29t November, 2023.

The Committee AGREED that the decisions be recorded as a true
record of proceedings.

No. 5

GWENT WELL-BEING PLAN 2023-28 DELIVERY PLAN
DEVELOPMENT

Consideration was given to the report and an overview of the areas
for focus was provided by the respective lead.

The Committee AGREED that the report be accepted and the
Committee scrutinised the process followed and provided feedback
for the PSB to consider when agreeing the outcomes.

Page 7

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Agenda Item 5

"\

Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus

Gwent
Public Services Board

SUBJECT: Gwent Well-being Plan Annual Report
MEETING: Gwent Public Services Board Scrutiny Committee

DATE: 11t September 2024
Report written and submitted by: Sarah King, GSWAG Lead

. PURPOSE
1.1 To present the first annual progress report on the Gwent Well-being Plan.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS
2.1 That the PSB Scrutiny Committee notes the progress detailed in the first
Annual Report against the Gwent Well-being Plan and provides comments.

3. BACKGROUND

3.1 The Gwent Public Services Board (PSB) was set up under the Well-being of
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 as a way for public bodies to work
together to take a long-term joined-up approach to improving economic,
social, environmental and cultural well-being.

3.2  The Act requires that the PSB sets out how they will do this through a Well-
being Plan. This plan must follow the sustainable development principles; to
act in a manner that seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met
without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own
needs.

3.3  Atthe same time as developing the Well-being Plan, the PSB also
commissioned the Institute for Health Equity to consider how to improve
health inequalities across the region. The Building a Fairer Gwent report was
published shortly after the Well-being Plan and many of the recommendations
dove tail with the aims of the Plan.

3.3 The PSB agreed its first regional Well-being Plan, covering the period 2023 to
2028, in July 2023. The PSB is required to report on the steps they have
taken to meet the objectives set out in the Well-being Plan through a progress
report initially 14 months after the publication of a new Well-being Plan and
annually after that.

3.4  This Annual Progress Report is the first detailing progress on the Gwent Well-
being Plan and covers the period July 2023 — March 2024.

4, KEY ISSUES
4.1  The PSB identified two objectives and 5 supporting steps in their first Well-
being Plan.

4.2 In order to deliver the Plan four Areas of Focus were agreed. These are:
e That every child has the best start in life

Page 9

Page 9



4.3

vices Board

i Gwasanaeths
Gwent
Public Ser oard

e That everyone lives in a place they feel safe

e That everyone has the same economic chances

e That everyone lives in a climate ready community where their environment
is valued and protected.

In the months following the adoption of the Well-being Plan the PSB and its
wider partners have been considering what the most effective and
collaborative actions to take are.

RESOURCES
The Annual Report has been prepared by officers sitting within each of the
partnership organisations.

Resourcing for the delivery of the Well-being Plan comes from the PSB
organisations existing budgets. The leadership group(s) will be responsible for
identifying the resource requirement to deliver the PSB ambitions.

AUTHORS
Heather Delonnette, Caerphilly CBC (in collaboration with the Gwent Strategic
Well-being Action Group)

SUBMITTED BY
Sarah King, Blaenau Gwent CBC (Chair of Gwent Strategic Well-being Action
Group)

Appendix 1 Draft Annual Report

Page 10

Page 10



=

Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus
Gwent

\ Public Services Board

Annual Report 2024

Introduction

This is the first annual report of the Gwent Public Services Board (PSB) on the progress of
our Gwent Well-being Plan during 2023-24. The PSB is a partnership of public service
organisations that work together to improve the economic, social, environmental and
cultural well-being of Gwent. We published our first joint Well-being Assessment in 2022
Gwent Well-being Assessment - Gwent Public Services Board Gwent Public Services
Board (gwentpsb.org), which informed our Gwent Well-being Plan published in July 2023
Gwent Well-being Plan - Gwent Public Services Board Gwent Public Services Board
(gwentpsb.org).

Background

The Gwent PSB was established in 2021, bringing together the five existing PSBs in the
region. This decision was made to simplify and strengthen the existing partnership
arrangements by bringing all the public services together. The move to a regional PSB, with
collective responsibility for improving well-being, makes it easier for partners to actively get
involved, to add value and avoid doing the same thing several times. The PSB is made up
of the five local authorities: Blaenau Gwent, Caerphilly, Monmouthshire, Newport and
Torfaen, Aneurin Bevan University Health Board, South Wales Fire and Rescue Service
and Natural Resources Wales. Other key partners include Gwent Police, The Gwent Police
and Crime Commissioner, Public Health Wales, Gwent Association of Voluntary
Organisations, Torfaen Voluntary Alliance, National Probation Service, the University of
South Wales and Welsh Ministers.

Cyfoeth
CA ERPHILLY TORFAE \ Natu riol
NGO cou. wn m )l . Cymru
Blaenau Gwent

CA ERFFILI . BOROUGHE TORFAEN Natural
monmouthshire Resorces
Str f)’.’”:"}’ Wales
i CASNEWYDD
GIG gmd  Heddlu
i il .
c/LQ‘o sy = - B> Gwent WENT
| Police

\I, University of
& m South Wales Gwasanaex\ 79\ G ” ”“ lcyhvd Cyhoeddus
Prifysgol
Llywudraelh i w : - - De Cy?nru Probation Public Health

Welsh Government Service \\ \us Wales

Page 11

Page 11


https://www.gwentpsb.org/en/well-being-plan/well-being-assessment/
https://www.gwentpsb.org/en/well-being-plan/well-being-assessment/
https://www.gwentpsb.org/en/well-being-plan/gwent-well-being-plan/
https://www.gwentpsb.org/en/well-being-plan/gwent-well-being-plan/

Gwent Well-being Plan

The Well-being Assessment for Gwent and the Building a

in our communities and the need to take action on the

ﬁ Fairer Gwent report showed that inequality and deprivation

climate and nature emergencies were having an impact on

well-being.
Well-being Plan
for Gwent Our Well-being Plan set out how we intended to address

2023 - 2028 these challenges across Gwent. The Plan has two
interconnected key objectives:

is valued and protected, benefitting our well-being now and
G for future generations.
\—

¢ We want to create a fairer, more equitable and inclusive
- Gwent for all.
¢ We want a climate-ready Gwent, where our environment
. — N

To support the delivery of the objectives, the plan sets out

these five, interrelated steps:

Take action to reduce the cost of living crisis in the longer term.

Provide and enable the supply of good quality, affordable, appropriate homes.
Take action to reduce our carbon emissions, help Gwent adapt to climate change,
and protect and restore our natural environment.

Take action to address inequities, particularly in relation to health, through the
framework of the Marmot Principles.

Enable and support people, neighbourhoods, and communities to be resilient,
connected, thriving and safe.

B® T VP

Since publishing our Plan, the PSB has been working hard to understand what we need to
do, together and at scale, to achieve these objectives. We have identified four Areas of
Focus where we feel that we can make the most difference. These are:

That every child has the best start in life

That everyone lives in a place they feel safe

That everyone has the same economic chances

That everyone lives in a climate ready community where their environment is valued
and protected.

You will be able to read more about these and the work that we’re planning later in this

report.

Page 12

Page 12



We want to create a fairer, more equitable and inclusive Gwent for all.

‘Building a Fairer Gwent’ — Gwent Marmot Region
- wse. | There are many factors (often referred to as the ‘social

5 wmm determinants of health’) within society, the economy and the
. ___ environment that influence peoples’ health and well-being.
= Inequalities within these, such as the unequal distribution of
wealth and resources, drive the conditions in which people
live, work and play and create unfair but avoidable
differences in health and well-being outcomes. We can see
these differences in Gwent, where females in the most
deprived areas (20 per cent) live almost 20 years less in
BUILDING A good health compared with those in the least deprived, and
SERRAPIEECLT where at least one in four children in all local authority areas

EQUITY AND THE live in poverty after housing costs are taken into account.
SOCIAL DETERMINANTS

Recognising the importance of addressing the social
determinants of health, the PSB began work with the Institute
of Health Equity in 2022 to examine the impact of inequity on health and well-being in
Gwent, and to develop proposals for action. This work took just over twelve months to
complete and culminated in the publication of ‘Building a Fairer Gwent: Improving Health
Equity and the Social Determinants’ in July 2023 Building a Fairer Gwent: The Report -
Gwent Public Services Board Gwent Public Services Board (gwentpsb.org) . The report, its
conclusions and recommendations were presented to the PSB on the 20" July 2023, with
both the report and all its recommendations being accepted.

Since July, a number of activities have taken place to begin taking forward the
recommendations. In October 2023, a leaders launch event was held at The Lysaght
Institute in Newport. This brought regional and national leaders together to galvanise all
partners around equality, equity, and social justice, lay a foundation to deliver the report’s
recommendations and allow individuals the opportunity to speak with passion about what
they and their organisation are doing and will be doing differently over the next five years to
address inequity and the social determinants of health. This led to the “Areas of Focus
work” described later in this report.

In the work that took place with the Institute of Health Equity, there was a recognition that
this had been concentrated on adults, predominantly drawn from the organisations that
make up the PSB. Although not deliberate, this could have the effect of focusing attention
on adults and missing the voice of children. To help address this, the PSB funded a project
at the start of 2024 specifically to hear from children about what mattered to them for their
health and well-being. This was called the ‘Imagining Healthy Futures’ project and ran from
January to March 2024. In partnership with Llantarnam Grange, a contemporary art and
craft charity, a series of workshops and events were delivered in schools, nurseries,
markets and an arts centre aimed at young children. At these sessions, children were
encouraged to use a variety of creative media to explore what mattered to them when
thinking about their own health.

Page 13

Page 13


https://www.gwentpsb.org/en/gwent-marmot-region/building-a-fairer-gwent-the-report/
https://www.gwentpsb.org/en/gwent-marmot-region/building-a-fairer-gwent-the-report/

Figure 1: Healthy Futures: Year 6 pupils from Our Lady of
the Angels Roman Catholic Primary and Nursery School,
Cwmbran.

The outputs and messages from this work are now being
used to inform further work on the best start in life and
maximising children’s potential. A write-up of this project
will be available on the PSB website shortly.

~

Case Study
Torfaen County Borough Council — Adopting the Marmot Principles

Torfaen’s County Plan is focused around nine well-being objectives - four targeted at
improving ‘Place’, four on empowering people within communities, and one on how the
Council can work more effectively and efficiently for and with their residents. Like other
public bodies in Gwent, Torfaen Council pledged to work together to fight inequality and
become a 'Marmot' focussed Local Authority. Torfaen Council’s County Plan comes to an
end in 2027, but the Council recognised that addressing intergenerational inequality
across the county, demands a longer-term perspective. Being a Marmot Council offers
the chance to focus, and to use the Council’s wide range of influence to tackle the
sources of inequality.

Torfaen Council have developed a “Master Plan” based on the Marmot principles which
gives a clear vision for the county. This is embedded into every service plan throughout
the Council. It helps the Council stay focused and informs actions and decisions for the
future. Torfaen Council’s current and future County Plans are important milestones along
the way. Together, they allow the Council to foresee challenges, prepare for them and
make sure that their daily actions match their ultimate goals. Going forward, the Marmot
principles will serve as their compass, guiding towards a future where every individual in

the community can thrive.
TORFAEN WBK'RDEISTREF
COUNTY SIROL
BOROUGH TORFAEN
https://www.gwentpsb.org/en/gwent-marmot-region/

https://www.torfaen.gov.uk/en/AboutTheCouncil/ImprovingTorfaen/County-Plan/County-
Plan-2022-2027.aspx

N\ J

Page 14

Page 14

For further information please go to:



https://www.gwentpsb.org/en/gwent-marmot-region/
https://www.torfaen.gov.uk/en/AboutTheCouncil/ImprovingTorfaen/County-Plan/County-Plan-2022-2027.aspx
https://www.torfaen.gov.uk/en/AboutTheCouncil/ImprovingTorfaen/County-Plan/County-Plan-2022-2027.aspx

We want a climate-ready Gwent, where our environment is valued and
protected, benefitting our well-being now and for future generations.

Responding to the Climate and Nature emergency

Public Engagement and Planning

During the PSB’s public engagement activities, communities told us they were concerned
about carbon emissions, protecting nature from the impact of climate change, adapting to
increased flooding, droughts and heatwaves, reducing food waste, preserving local
greenspaces, and educating people about the impacts of climate change across Gwent.

A PSB survey (January - February 2024) reported on 60 projects across Gwent where
action was already taking place: Local Authorities are developing Local Area Energy Plans
and decarbonisation initiatives; community groups are raising awareness through local
action, including planting trees and initiatives like Tasty Not Wasty and Repair Cafes, and
the Blaenau Gwent Climate Assembly.

Community concerns are reflected in this objective in the PSB Well-being Plan. Our
well-being plan is in line with the Welsh Government’s ambition for the public sector to
collectively reach net zero by 2030 and be a country that is prepared for climate change,
understands the risks and challenges ahead, and is able to adapt and reduce the impact of
climate change.

The Building a Fairer Gwent report identified climate change as a fundamental threat to
health, with recommendations for organisations in Gwent to ensure carbon reduction
interventions reduce inequities and do not increase them. The PSB wants to support
communities to adapt to the impacts of climate change, recognising that some communities
are more exposed to floods, heatwaves, air pollution and other climate risks to health.

Preparing to Respond to the Climate and Nature Emergencies

To support the Gwent public sector, the PSB funded 15 officers to complete ‘Assessing
Climate Risk’ training with the Met Office in January and March. By doing the training
together, participants felt that they developed a common understanding and are moving
forward as a group to share learning and work together to undertake a Climate Risk
Assessment for Gwent in the next year.

To help them, Natural Resources Wales (a PSB partner) in collaboration with Welsh
Government and Public Health Wales, developed the Climate Change Risk Assessment
Framework for Public Services Boards. This guidance is the first step towards a climate
adaptation strategy, considering climate change risk in a local context. PSB members
provided feedback on the draft framework.

At PSB workshops in February and March 2024, organisations told us that assessing
climate risk to inform climate adaptation planning was urgent and important and is most
effectively achieved at a regional level, sharing expertise and resources. They want to work
together, with the PSB, so Gwent is more prepared for the future effects of climate change,
in an equitable way, through better understanding of the regional risks. Acknowledging we
cannot tackle climate change without recognising the nature emergency, they also wanted

Page 15

Page 15



to work together so public sector land and infrastructure provides maximum benefits for
people, nature and climate.

This feedback will inform the PSB’s priorities in delivering its well-being plan.

Arrangements to Support the Gwent PSB

As the PSB was formed and considered the requirements it would need to support them to
deliver their vision and developing plans, it was identified and agreed as part of their terms
of reference, to continue two key supporting structures.

The first key structure is the Gwent Strategic Well-being Action Group (GSWAG) which
brings together key officers from statutory and non-statutory PSB partner organisations.
The PSB agreed that GSWAG would be identified as sub-group, with the Chair attending
each PSB meeting, representing a broader function of PSB coordinator who presents
relevant considerations and recommendations.

This important regional group brought continuity from already established arrangements as
it had previously played a crucial role in helping the five individual PSBs in Gwent to work
collaboratively to prepare their first Well-being Assessments and Plans for each local
authority area (2018 to 2023).

The aim of GSWAG is:

e To act as the officer support group to the Board

e To prepare the local assessment of well-being and Gwent Well-being Plan

e To ensure that regional activity that contributes to the Board’s well-being objectives
is delivered in collaboration

e To liaise with Welsh Government and the Office of the Future Generations
Commissioner on behalf of the Board

¢ Facilitate the relationship, continuity and reporting between regional activity and the
work of the Local Delivery Groups

e Provide evidence to the Regional Scrutiny Committee

e To ensure that the work of the partnership is open and transparent and that it's
activity and performance is available on the Gwent Public Services Board’s website

e To prepare an annual report on behalf of the Gwent Public Services Board

Through 2023/24, GSWAG has continued to work together, identifying and co-ordinating
these aims and supporting the PSB in developing and becoming an effective regional
partnership board.

The second key structure is Local Delivery Groups. In each of the five local authority areas,
a Local Delivery Group (LDG) has been set up to support the delivery of the PSB’s
objectives at the local level. Their membership is similar to that of the PSB, with additional
local representation. Activity to deliver the objectives may look different in different areas
and the LDGs will be able to better connect with and draw on local expertise and groups to
provide a local flavour. It is anticipated as the regional partnership arrangements develop,
each of these groups may want to deliver their own action plans creating a link between
local issues and regional priorities and action set by the PSB.

Page 16

Page 16



The aims of each of the LDGs are:

e To ensure the delivery of local actions that contribute to the Board’s well-being
objectives and any regional activity that contributes to the Board’s well-being
objectives.

e To take forward any actions of a local nature set out in the Gwent Well-being Plan

e To involve local communities, local community areas and any person or group with
an interest in the well-being of the area covered by the partnership

e To report as requested through local democratic scrutiny arrangements, Regional
Scrutiny Committee and the Gwent Public Services Board.

e To ensure that the work of the partnership is open and transparent and that its
activity and performance is available

The LDGs also support the discharge of statutory duties at a local level.

(
Case Study onenewport
One Newport @

Following the establishment of the Gwent PSB, One Newport became a Local Delivery
Group of the PSB and has the same organisational membership as the regional Board
along with Coleg Gwent, University of South Wales, Newport Live, Business in the
Community, Newport Youth Council and Registered Social Landlords.

One Newport has two main aims, to develop and deliver activity in Newport that would
benefit from a strong partnership approach, and to deliver the local priorities within the
Gwent Well-being Plan and contribute to regional projects. Our Local Action Plan supports
both aims making sure Newport’'s unique issues get the attention they deserve.

Members adopted this plan in December 2023, with a formal launch event in March 2024.
Members are establishing theme boards under each of the objectives. One Newport Local
Action Plan 2023-28 - Final EN

\_

J

Page 17

Page 17


https://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/One-Newport/One-Newport-Local-Action-Plan-2023-28-Final-EN.pdf
https://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/One-Newport/One-Newport-Local-Action-Plan-2023-28-Final-EN.pdf

Collaboration: Challenges and Complexities of working as a region.

As a large and diverse area, bringing five local areas into a regional Public Services Board
comes with its complexities and challenges and, importantly, opportunities.

What's Worked Well

With such a complex partnership, there can be a tendency to focus on the challenges,
however there are benefits and opportunities from working at scale.

As a partnership, the PSB is building upon existing strong informal collaboration and
working relationships which enables open and honest conversations and the ability to
challenge each other to achieve the best outcomes for the people of Gwent.

Each member of the PSB is committed to improving the lives of the people across Gwent
and appreciate the additional positive impact of working at scale, especially in the current
economic climate.

Political manifestos and priorities are aligned across the whole region.

Complexities

The partnership consists of individual organisations and sectors with differing priorities and
areas of focus can impact upon reaching shared aims and objectives. The legislative
context in which the member organisations work leads to some complexity, particularly with
organisations that are non-devolved such as Gwent Police and Probation Services in
Gwent.

Aligning becoming a Marmot region with the core work of the Public Services Board adds a
layer of complexity for the partnership. Existing arrangements including local delivery
groups, officer groups, and other partnership boards such as the Regional Partnership
Board, Area Planning Board, Gwent Safeguarding Board, the South East Wales

Corporate Joint Committee and Violence Against Women Domestic Abuse and Sexual
Violence Board, leads to complexity over governance. With a large membership, changes
in organisational representation can impact upon consistency and accountability.

Challenges

Many of the challenges faced by the Board during this period relate to the complexity of
bringing together five diverse geographical areas with existing local, sub regional, and
regional arrangements. With such a large membership, achieving consensus both on
overarching aims and delivery priorities can be a challenge. There is also a challenge in
communicating and transforming regional priorities and objectives back into each
organisation and local actions, plans and strategies. Bringing together the work of other
local, regional, and national boards and avoiding duplication of effort, adds to the challenge
of the PSB achieving clarity and agreement on areas of focus.

Page 18

Page 18



4 )

Case StUdy 4’“ PARTNERIAETH LLESIANT LLEOL
Blaenau Gwent Local Well-being Partnership ’N Blaenau Gwent

The Blaenau Gwent Local Well-being Partnership (BG LWP), the local delivery group, is
an officer group that meets formally on a quarterly basis, in addition to subject-specific
sub-groups and development workshops, comprising representatives from local and
regional partner organisations. It is responsible for identifying and developing local well-
being priorities for Blaenau Gwent, and delivering against these through collaborative
partnership working.

During 2023-24, the BG LWP held a series of stakeholder engagement workshops in
addition to its formal quarterly LWP meetings. The aim of the workshops was for local and
sub-regional stakeholders to work in partnership with each other to reflect on the success,
barriers & challenges for existing local well-being projects/programmes, as well as consider
well-being priorities for our local communities, and identify opportunities for new partnership
working and/or where existing well-being projects could be scaled up or used as model to
more collaboratively across the region or sub-region.

The workshops were well-attended by partners, who were keen to engage and provided
valuable insight into local well-being priorities and opportunities for further partnership
working. The evidence gathered alongside a data-led outcomes approach has enabled the
LWP to start developing a local well-being action plan that aligns to the Marmot and
regional well-being priorities.

BG LWP Workshop at Rassau Resource BG Food Partnership Community Food
Community Centre, July 2023 Support Network at the Llanhilleth
Miners Institute, April 2024

Blaenau Gwent 50+ Forum meeting at
Rassau Resource Community Centre,
July 2024

Page 19

Page 19




@se Study \

f 3‘}«| ¥ Gaerffili A GAREM
J THE Caerphilly we want

 JE Y
QN

Caerphilly Local Delivery Group

Following the development of the Gwent Well-being Plan, the Caerphilly Local Delivery
Group (LDG) held a workshop for over 60 stakeholders in June 2023 to look at what could
be done locally to deliver the regional plan. Everyone contributed to a discussion around
each of the steps in the plan, offering ideas and the contributions their organisation could
make in the next couple of years. From the session, the LDG agreed on three key activities
to work on in the coming one to two years.

These are:
e Develop a Caerphilly County Borough Net Zero Carbon 2050 Strategy
e Maximise the potential of town centres as community hubs
e Improving employment opportunities

Since then, more detailed delivery plans have been developed by lead officers which have
been presented and discussed at LDG meetings. This has enabled other partners to
contribute to the plans and ensure that collaboration is encouraged.

. J

Gwent Public Services Board Areas of Focus and Workshops

Introduction

Following an extensive review aimed at identifying the Areas of Focus and impact for the
PSB, it became essential to ensure that stakeholders and public service colleagues agreed
on the identified themes. It was also necessary to determine how to implement changes
effectively and what new or existing approaches should be adopted to positively impact
communities.

To address these objectives, two workshops were developed, one hosted in Cwmbran and
an alternate date in Caerphilly, concentrating on four primary areas of focus:

e That every child has the best start in life

e That everyone lives in a place they feel safe

e That everyone has the same economic chances

e That everyone lives in a climate ready community where their environment is valued and
protected

Page 20

Page 20



These workshops aimed to ensure alignment with the Well-being Plan and Building a Fairer
Gwent, which have been adopted across Gwent. These principles highlight the social
determinants of health and were integral to the workshop discussions, facilitated by the
area of focus leads.

Workshop Objectives
The main objectives of the workshops were:

1. To confirm that the identified themes reflected the correct areas of focus.

2. To discuss how to implement changes effectively.

3. To identify existing or new approaches necessary to positively impact communities.
4. To avoid duplication of efforts by coordinating with other public boards.

Attendees and Participation

The workshops saw active participation, with over 160 people attending the sessions. In
addition to staff and other individuals from across the PSB partnership, the events attracted
attendees representing a range of non-governmental organisations including:

Aneurin Leisure Bron Afon

Business in the Community Caerphilly 50+ Forum

Careers Wales Coleg Gwent

Cornerstone Dept for Work and Pensions

Dwr Cymru Future Generations Commissioner’s Office
Gwent Regional Partnership Board Gwent Wildlife Trust

Groundwork Melin Homes

Monmouthshire Housing Pobl Group

RSPB Tai Calon

Key strategic leads were present to ensure the effective addressing of issues. Their
participation was crucial given the current resource constraints and the need for efficient
and integrated public services delivery.

Workshop Structure and Facilitation

The workshops were structured to foster interactive discussions, led by the theme leads for
each of the four focus areas. Each theme lead was responsible for:

e Facilitating discussions within their area of
focus.

e Drawing out key priorities.

e Establishing two key priorities within their
theme.

The introduction of the Gwent Joint Strategic Assessment from Public Health Wales was
valuable as it provided baseline data for attendees to reference for future discussions.
Gwent Joint Strategic Assessment - Aneurin Bevan University Health Board (nhs.wales)
This presentation was provided at both workshops and was well received by partners.

Page 21

Page 21


https://abuhb.nhs.wales/health-advice/gwent-joint-strategic-assessment/

Themes and Priorities

1. That every child has the best start in life
Key Priorities:
¢ Enhancing early childhood education
and care.
e Improving maternal and child health
services.

2. That everyone has the same economic
chances
Key Priority:

¢ Increasing employment opportunities.

3. That everyone lives in a place they feel safe
Key Priority:
¢ Reducing crime and anti-social behaviour.

4. That everyone lives in a climate ready community where their environment is valued and
protected

Key Priorities:
e Promoting sustainable practices and reducing carbon footprint.
e Enhancing green spaces and environmental conservation efforts.

Findings

The workshops successfully brought together key stakeholders and facilitated meaningful
conversations around the four areas of focus. The outcomes below were identified from the
discussions and will support the work of the PSB going forward. The PSB are now looking
at how best to implement collaborative delivery to ensure efficiency and avoid duplication of
effort. Once activity is agreed appropriate monitoring and evaluation will be put in place to
ensure progress can be measured and obstacles addressed.

That every child has the best start in life

Outcome 1: We are better at monitoring and measuring the needs of children, taking a
continuous improvement approach.

Outcome 2: All children and families are supported by all services that impact on 0-7
years, with a focus on prevention and early intervention.

That everyone lives in a place they feel safe

Outcome 1: Trauma-informed practice and ACE-awareness is embedded across all
Gwent PSB organisations, to protect children & young people from harm, and support
healthy development.

Outcome 2: Place-based models of working are developed at scale to address
community tensions, cohesion and provide early help & support for communities across
Gwent.

The two proposed outcomes which align to the Pan-Gwent Community Safety Review
were:

Page 22

Page 22



Outcome 3: The Gwent Serious Violence Duty Strategy is delivered to embed public
health approaches across public sector organisations to prevent & tackle the drivers of
serious violence within our communities.

Outcome 4: Appropriate synergies and connectivity between community safety regional
and local structures are established.

Everyone has the Same Economic Chances

Outcome 1: Enhance pathways to decent, fair & sustainable employment across Gwent
through a coordinated partnership approach to education, skills, training, apprenticeships
and volunteering opportunities.

That everyone lives in a climate-ready community where their environment is
valued and protected

Outcome 1: Gwent is more prepared for the future effects of climate change in an
equitable way through better understanding of the regional risks.

Outcome 2: Public sector land and infrastructure is providing maximum benefits for
people, nature and climate in an equitable way

Partnerships

Third Sector

The Gwent Association of Voluntary Organisations (GAVO) serves as the County Voluntary
Council for Blaenau Gwent, Caerphilly, Monmouthshire, and Newport, working
collaboratively with the Torfaen Voluntary Alliance (TVA) to represent the voluntary sector
across Gwent. Since the inception of the Gwent PSB, the county voluntary councils have
been a committed partner, actively contributing to its mission and initiatives.

The partnership with the PSB has been a positive experience for the Third Sector
throughout the region. During 2023/24, we have made significant strides in collaboration
with our public service colleagues and the broader Third Sector community. A notable
achievement is the commencement of the Third Sector Partnership Agreement for Gwent.
This agreement, which outlines the terms of collaboration between public services and the
Third Sector, is a significant milestone for our communities.

The scope and scale of this partnership agreement, given the diverse range of partners
across Gwent, is unmatched across Wales. Reaching an agreement in principle marks a
substantial achievement and reflects the dedication and collaborative spirit of all involved. It
serves as a tangible example of the positive impact the Gwent PSB can have on our
communities, demonstrating how effective partnership working can lead to innovative and
meaningful outcomes.

As a proud member of the PSB, we are delighted to be part of this process and look
forward to continuing our work to support and strengthen the Third Sector across Gwent.
The progress we have made together is a testament to the power of collaboration and the
shared commitment to improving the lives of those within our communities.

Page 23

Page 23



Community Safety Review

Following its formation in 2021, the PSB held a workshop which comprised a
comprehensive overview of the strategic drivers and principles for change in taking a
regional approach to community safety and well-being in Gwent. The session aimed to
focus on areas of Community Safety, VAWDASV work, and the Area Planning Board
(APB), which are part of the wider statutory duties for which the board is responsible.

PSB agreed that a comprehensive review of the current community safety related boards
and structures across the region be undertaken to inform:

e the governance and quality of delivery,
e strategic alignment for collaboration, and,
e data & intelligence needs.

In addition, PSB requested clarity in how the Community Safety Partnership (CSPs) were
discharging responsibilities at a local level. The preliminary work of the review identified
there was an inconsistent approach to community safety functions at a local level across
Gwent, and not all local authorities had a functioning CSP arrangement in place; As such,
the PSB took the decision to reinstate functioning and consistent CSP across all five
authority areas to ensure there was a robust local mechanism for tackling these most
serious issues.

The review also highlighted the complexity of the broader community safety partnership
landscape, with many bords and related agendas being established with a variety of
programme, project, or statutory drivers. It also highlighted the need for both strategic and
tactical responses to address police demand, health & well-being, social exclusion, and
inequalities, along with the importance of collaboration at local, regional, and national
levels.

The review also emphasized that as the PSB was committed to making communities across
Gwent safer places to live, work and visit, there needed to be clear leadership to drive
activity, hold accountability, improve practice, and strengthen collaboration and alignment.

In summary, the community safety review undertaken by the PSB has highlighted many
challenges in a complex area of work, not all of which is devolved to Wales, and some of
which consists of competing legislation from UK Government. As such, the PSB is due to
consider the proposal to form a strategic Community Safety Board for Gwent; if agreed this
new structure will aim to hold a comprehensive oversight and expert view of community
safety practices, both devolved and non-devolved, ensuring alignment of various boards
and partnerships, and strengthening a consistent community safety partnership function,
driving good practice across the region, holding a clear focus on prevention, early
intervention, and effective collaboration across all levels of governance and community
engagement.

Page 24

Page 24



/Case Study h

Monmouthshire Local Delivery Group

Standing agenda items at the Monmouthshire Local Delivery Group (MLDG) encompass
the statutory duties for which the PSB is responsible. The MLDG oversees the local delivery|
of these duties, along with performance monitoring, and reports risk management by
exception through local governance structures.

Following the PSB review and the ambition to establish a robust community safety
partnership structure across Gwent, the chair, on behalf of the MLDG members, agreed to
review its local structures under the local Community Safety Partnership. This review aimed
to strengthen local delivery and processes to support the Gwent review’s outcome and the
PSB priority that “everyone lives in a place they feel safe.”

With the support of key MLDG members, the local Community Safety Partnership reviewed
its delivery structures and established a new framework for delivery. This framework aligns
with additional duties and strategies introduced during the development of the Gwent Well-
being Plan, including the Serious Violence Duty and the Welsh Government’'s VAWDASV
Strategy. Both informed Gwent strategies in 2023 and required regional and local delivery
mechanisms.

The Monmouthshire Community Safety Partnership has implemented a new delivery
structure and developed a new delivery plan. This has enhanced its capacity to respond to
regional and local delivery needs, providing confidence at both levels that a solid delivery
framework is in place. This framework strengthens collaboration, improves practice, and is
fit for purpose, ensuring effective service delivery for local citizens.

B ol

Page 25

Page 25



Involvement and Engagement

Imagining Healthy Futures project

The PSB worked with a group of freelance artists coordinated by Llantarnam Grange Arts
Centre between December 2023 and April 2024 to trial engagement methods within
Torfaen and understand attitudes towards having a healthy future and what this means to
residents.

The project aimed to explore the role that a creative arts programme can play in engaging
communities in the co-creation of a vision for a healthy future. It was delivered via a series
of workshops with primary schools and colleges and a mix of scheduled and drop-in
sessions in communities. The objectives of the workshops were:

e To engage people in arts activities themed around the building blocks of health

e To use a variety of artforms to explore what matters most to people

e To contribute towards the production of a collaborative artwork to articulate
narratives for a healthy future

The workshops used a variety of artforms facilitated by freelance specialist arts
practitioners: letter press; origami; painting and collage; and digital animation. Alongside the
arts activity, conversations were initiated with participants on their priorities for ‘A Healthier
Future’. This included discussing their beliefs on how different areas of their lives such as
‘homes’, ‘green spaces’, ‘neighbourhoods’, ‘schools’, ‘transport’ and ‘work and pay’ could
contribute to a more positive healthier future.

In primary schools, the artists worked with key stage 1 pupils (ages 4-7) using an animation
programme to explore pupils' ideas of a healthy future. Photographs of Cwmbran Shopping
Centre and Broad Street, Blaenavon were used as a digital backdrop. The pupils then
created their own short animations to transform these townscapes into their vision of a
healthy future.

All of the workshop’s sessions, comments and art created were captured digitally using
photography and film. A digital artist was included within the commissioning to turn all the
creative content into a final short film to communicate participants’ vision for a Healthy
Future. We intend to use this product to generate further community involvement and
discussion during 2024-2025.

Training

The PSB used Regional Support Funding from Welsh Government to improve
understanding in relation to our Well-being Objective.

Nature Wise Eco-Literacy Course

27 people from a wide range of organisations in Gwent attended this training, which
encouraged participants to complete a personal action plan on nature-focused action. All
those that completed this received Nature Wise certification and those who attended also
received a summary of the slide pack and some useful links so they could continue their
learning and share with others.

Page 26

Page 26



In addition to PSB partners Aneurin Bevan University Health Board, Blaenau Gwent County
Borough Council, Caerphilly County Borough Council, Newport City Council, GAVO and
Natural Resources Wales, participants attended from:

e Greening Maindee

e Newport Youth and Play Service
e Tai Calon Community Housing

e Aneurin Leisure, Bryn Bach Parc
e Eveswell Primary School

e Gwent Wildlife Trust

e KIDCARE4U

e Keep Wales Tidy

e Tredegar Town Council

e The Outdoor Partnership

Participants are now able to:

e Describe how ecosystems function and interact to underpin all well-being

e Understand the extent of global changes

¢ |dentify the different levels of protection in place for the natural environment

e |dentify and implement actions they can take as individuals and in groups to protect
and enhance nature and biodiversity

e Communicate to others why eco-literacy and caring for the natural environment is
essential to human survival and well-being.

The understanding gained will improve involvement and engagement with the
environmental topics that are key to Gwent’s Well-being Plan, both within organisations and
when communicating externally.

Capacity Building for Climate Change Risk Assessment

15 people completed ‘Assessing Climate Risk’ with the Met Office across two training
programmes in January and March. The participants will work together going forward to
consider Climate Risk in Gwent and are now seeking to establish shared working practices
and how to share learning across organisations.

Page 27

Page 27



Next steps

Due to a number of changes at senior levels across the statutory and partner organisations
which form part of the PSB, there is now a need to renew and revise the membership to
reflect the most recent changes.

Further to that, it would be valuable to put in place some facilitated strategic leadership
development for the PSB to build and develop the shared purpose for the region and
strengthen collective decision making.

With the introduction of a new regional delivery framework, the PSB should be better placed
to start driving forward priority areas and accelerating the pace of change through delivery
at a regional level against the Well-being Plan Objectives and Steps and those contained in
the Building a Fairer Gwent Report (Marmot).

This will be underpinned by the adoption of the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment for
Gwent and better use of this data to help understand where we are in terms of outcomes for
all of our communities.

Page 28

Page 28



Agenda Item 6

- -\.

SUBJECT: Gwent Public Services Board Delivery Framework : Best Start in

Life

MEETING: Gwent Public Services Board Scrutiny Committee

DATE:

11th September 2024

Report written and submitted by: Sarah King, Chair of GSWAG

Purpose of Report

1.1

The purpose of this paper is for the PSB to receive a Delivery Report (Appendix
2) and Data Set (Appendix 3) for the first Area of Focus (Best Start in Life).

Background

2.1

2.2

3.1

The Gwent Well-being Plan 2023-28 was agreed by the PSB at its meeting in
July 2023. The plan set two Well-being Objectives and five steps to deliver
them. The plan also embedded four overarching principles on the way the PSB
will work to deliver its objectives and has since identified four key areas of focus
for regional well-being delivery around Best Start in Life, Economic Chances,
Safe Places, and Climate-Ready Communities.

The Gwent PSB and its member organisations also signalled a collective
ambition to address inequity and its root causes in March 2023. A significant
amount of work has taken place on behalf of the PSB, resulting in the
publication of the Building a Fairer Gwent: Improving Health Equity and the
Social Determinants report https://www.gwentpsb.org/en/gwent-marmot-
region/building-a-fairer-qwent-the-report/.

Following this, The PSB agreed to work together to become the first ‘Marmot
Region’ in Wales by implementing the recommendations and actions contained
within the report, thus integrating the eight Marmot Principles into its Well-being
Plan approach.

Delivery Framework

To begin the journey to establishing an up-to-date picture of delivery across
Gwent, a delivery framework has been devised which will monitor progress
against the above agreed objectives and recommended actions amongst PSB
partner organisations (individually and collectively). The actions have been
categorised into the 4 Areas of Focus (AoF) for the PSB to monitor progress
and identify any gaps or opportunities for regional delivery. A visual depiction of

Page 1 of 2
Page 29

Page 29



https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gwentpsb.org%2Fwp-content%2Fuploads%2F2023%2F08%2FGwent-WBP-Final-digital-version-2023-2.pdf&data=05%7C02%7CKelly.Hayes%40torfaen.gov.uk%7C0513f060f2d64a9872ec08dc9d0405a4%7C2c4d0079c52c4bb3b3cad8eaf1b6b7d5%7C0%7C0%7C638557889364687117%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=IIAo4aFijitg117%2Bo7%2Fr9S%2FCTbkEPCCrw3fMZcv0pMA%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gwentpsb.org%2Fen%2Fgwent-marmot-region%2Fbuilding-a-fairer-gwent-the-report%2F&data=05%7C02%7CSarah.King%40blaenau-gwent.gov.uk%7C0513f060f2d64a9872ec08dc9d0405a4%7C2c4d0079c52c4bb3b3cad8eaf1b6b7d5%7C0%7C0%7C638557889365476560%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=O2IJHVkw8%2BYoaHKJCFxn6NQOEncUCYG0w1uwSGlzFGQ%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gwentpsb.org%2Fen%2Fgwent-marmot-region%2Fbuilding-a-fairer-gwent-the-report%2F&data=05%7C02%7CSarah.King%40blaenau-gwent.gov.uk%7C0513f060f2d64a9872ec08dc9d0405a4%7C2c4d0079c52c4bb3b3cad8eaf1b6b7d5%7C0%7C0%7C638557889365476560%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=O2IJHVkw8%2BYoaHKJCFxn6NQOEncUCYG0w1uwSGlzFGQ%3D&reserved=0

3.2

the Delivery Framework is at Appendix 1, members will note that this process
will be facilitated by the PSB Regional Resource.

For each Area of Focus, members will receive a Delivery Report and an
associated Data Set in the form of an infographic, which will be provided by
colleagues in the Gwent Joint Strategic Assessment (JSA) Team. The team will
work with the PSB Regional Resource to establish a regional baseline against
the four Areas of Focus and provide historic values/trends for indicators, where
available.

Recommendations to the PSB

41

4.2

4.3

Key Findings - Note and discuss the initial findings from the regional
assessment of progress against the actions relating to this Area of Focus (Best
Start in Life).

Leadership & Governance - Agree a PSB member to lead this Area of Focus
(Best Start in Life) who can work with and be supported by the PSB Regional
Resource to put in place governance arrangements which enable the progress
already made to be embedded and help accelerate delivery in other areas.

Delivery Framework - Agree the next Area of Focus to be reported on —
consider the Climate Ready Communities one which Steve Morgan, NRW has
already offered to lead. The PSB Regional Resource will facilitate and support
this process.

Recommendations to Scrutiny Committee

41

4.2

4.3

Note and discuss the initial findings from the regional assessment of progress
against the actions relating to the Best Start in Life Area of Focus. Provide any
comments and/or recommendations for the PSB to consider.

Note the PSB will be asked to consider future Leadership & Governance
arrangements for this work. They will be considering appointing a PSB Member
to lead each Area of Focus and to agree any governance arrangements which
need to be put in place to maintain progress and accelerate future delivery
across the region.

Note there will be a rolling programme of Delivery Reports and associated Data
Sets coming through covering each Area of Focus.

Background Documents /Electronic Links

Appendix 1 — Delivery Framework
Appendix 2 — Delivery Report
Appendix 3 — Data Set

Page 2 of 2
Page 30

Page 30




T¢ obed

T¢ abed

Gwent Public Services Board Delivery Framework

Intelligence, Data & Assessments

Building a Fairer
Gwent Joint Gwent Well- Gwent: Improving Gwent Well- Population
Strategic being Health Equity & being Plan 2023- Needs
Assessment Assessment the Social 28 Assessment
Determinants

Monitoring & Analysis of
Delivery

. Climate-
Give Everyone Everyone Ready

Every has the lives in a Communities
Child the same Place . where
. nvironment
Bgst S_tart Economic they feel i Valued &
in Life Chances Safe Protected




2¢ obed

Z¢ abed

Gwent PSB
Regional
Resource

PSB Area of
Focus Lead

Strategic
Assessment

Monitor any & all
delivery against
Areas of Focus
(based on data &
intelligence)

Analysis of Data &
Intelligence

Input into Delivery
Report for PSB

Representative of PSB
Lead to support in
developing report

(using data analysis to

help generate
narrative)

Provide data against
relevant metrics &
indicators for PSB

report

Pick up actions &
recommendations
from PSB e.g. Deep
Dive

Share report with
PSB Lead & PSB
Secretariat

Present report &
stimulate discussion
at Gwent PSB
meeting



=

Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus
Gwent

. Public Services Board

Gwent Well-Being Plan Update Report

Report Best Start in Life: Update Project / Action completed
Subject Report on PSB Partner
Organisation progress against Green | Current progress on target
key recommendations
Amber | Progress behind target but still
achievable
Date(s) 11/09/24 Gwent PSB Scrutiny Progress behind target,
Committee significant issues
19/09/24 Gwent Public N/A | Progress not directly
Services Board applicable
Delivery To be agreed by PSB Area of Give Every Child the Best
Lead Focus Start in Life
Objective(s) from Gwent Well- | Overall | Commentary
being Plan 2023-28 BRAG
We want to create a fairer, more This report specifically is aligned to this well-
equitable and inclusive Gwent being objective and directly supports the
for all outlined step to ‘take action to address
inequities, particularly in relation to health
through the framework of the Marmot
Principles’.
The report outlines progress made by partner
organisations against identified
recommendations to support a ‘Best Start in
Life’ approach from the Building a Fairer
Gwent report.
We want a climate-ready Updates not directly associated to this well-
Gwent, where our environment being objective.
is valued and protected,
benefitting our well-being now
and for future generations.
Page 33

Page

33




Background

The Gwent PSB and its member organisation have signalled its collective ambition to
address inequity and its root causes. A significant amount of work has taken place on
behalf of the PSB, resulting in the publication of Building a Fairer Gwent: Improving
Health Equity and the Social Determinants. Following this, a report was PSB received and
the Board re-stated and re-confirmed its ambition to address inequity and its root causes
and integrate the eight Marmot Principles into its Well-being Plan approach.

Following further consideration of the evidence from the Well-being Plan and Building a
Fairer Gwent report, the PSB identified the four ‘at-scale’ Areas of Focus (AoF) to start to
take this approach forward. These AoF were specifically identified to align to the Well-
being Steps and eight Marmot Principles, demonstrating clear integration across a range
of well-being priorities (see supporting Integration Matrix).

An initial mapping process of delivery against each of the AoF involved an extensive
range of partners across Gwent with over 200 individuals and over 20 organisations
responding to surveys or participating in the workshops. This included an initial mapping
of current delivery structures that are relevant to these areas. The feedback gathered has
been analysed, and there are some potential actions and outcomes that came from this
process that are additional to the Marmot focused recommendations from ‘Building a
Fairer Gwent’, which may be worth considering as part of the response and long-term
delivery.

Area of Focus: Giving Every Child the Best Start in Life

To begin the journey to establishing an up-to-date picture of delivery across Gwent
against the recommended actions from the Building a Fairer Gwent report (referred to
throughout this report as the Marmot recommendations), it was agreed by the PSB in May
2024 to carry out an initial exercise to monitor progress by PSB partner organisations
(individually and collectively).

Firstly, the Marmot recommendations were categorised into the 4 Areas of Focus (AoF)
for the PSB to monitor progress and identify any gaps or opportunities for regional
delivery.

Subsequently, Gwent Strategic Well-being Action Group (GSWAG) officers initially
engaged key representatives across the Health Board and Gwent local authorities to seek
any related progress against the Marmot recommendations relating to the ‘Best Start in
Life’ AoF for the 2023/24. Officers were requested to provide relevant information in a
spreadsheet format with an appropriate RAG rating (as for this report).

Based on the assessment of progress against the Marmot recommendations across
Gwent, several key points have emerged. Whilst there has been notable progress in
some areas, i.e around the Healthy and Sustainable Pre-School Scheme and educational
initiatives targeting school absences and inequalities, the overall picture is mixed.

Page 34

Page 34




[ Good Progress | [ Some Progress | | Unknown I No progress

Marmot Recommendations

BRAG

Commentary

MP1.1 - Define best start
and school readiness in
Gwent in partnership with
parents, early years staff and
health.

MP1.2 - Assess impact of
staff shortages on the
delivery of Flying Start in
areas of higher deprivation.

MP1.3 - Healthy and
Sustainable Pre-school
scheme identifies actions
across seven health topics
and shift aim to reduce
inequalities in every nursery.

PHW in collaboration with ABUHB are developing
a shared framework which will support the
prioritisation of future action across the early years
system in Wales.

One of the key steps will be to define what ‘best
start in life’ means for Wales and how this might be
measured. There is evidence of need for a
consensus on strategic terms like "best start in life"
and "school readiness."

While some progress has been made in
developing a strategic approach within the Health
Board, a more holistic definition that is agreed by
all stakeholders i.e. across Health, Education,
Early Years & Children’s Services should be
pursued. This will ensure consistency in future
reporting and action.

No related information on progress received from
the initial exercise.

Schools in the most deprived areas are actively
participating in the support scheme linking with
Healthy Schools and Community Focussed
Schools Teams to prioritise pupils in areas of
higher deprivation.

Some schools in the most deprived areas are
using the Whole School Approach to Emotional
and Mental Wellbeing Self-Evaluation Tool to
implement the statutory framework and enhance
emotional and mental wellbeing for staff and

pupils.

The new Welsh Network of Health and Wellbeing
Promoting Schools (WNHWPS) minimum
standards are awaiting approval by the Welsh
Government and publication by Public Health
Wales.

Page 35

Page 35




Marmot Recommendations | BRAG | Commentary

MP1.4 - Assess and South Wales Fire and Rescue Service indicated

recommend improving that their Maternity and Parental Leave and

maternity and parental Breastfeeding at Work policies have been

leave policies and support recently reviewed and updated so that all

for childcare in PSB member employees are eligible for up to 52 weeks full

organisations maternity pay. Staff who are breastfeeding are
placed on non-operational duties whilst continuing
to breastfeed and are provided with designated
facilities to express and store breastmilk whilst at
work.
Blaenau Gwent Council has recently committed to
review its Breastfeeding at Work policy as part of
its ‘Get Blaenau Gwent Breastfeeding’ campaign
action plan and have agreed to work with local
partners on via the Local Delivery Group (BG
Local Well-being Partnership).

MP1.5 - Identify areas of low Feedback relating to identifying areas of low

childcare provision and childcare provision in areas of higher deprivation

map to deprivation and indicates that this work is already conducted by

assess quality of provision. Local Authorities through the Childcare
Sufficiency Assessments, a statutory duty since
2008.
This may need to be revised to focus on the
provision of 2-year-old childcare in areas of low
deprivation, potentially linking it to the rollout of
Foundation Stage childcare.

MP2.1 - Reduce the gap in Each Local Authority approach to addressing the

year 11 attainment between attainment gap for FSM-eligible pupils focuses on

pupils eligible for free school challenging and supporting schools to enhance

meals(FSM) and other pupils teaching and learning quality. This is done

in every school and create through bespoke support plans and tailored

the culture for every pupil to professional learning (PL).

thrive with skills for life.
Each Local Authority develops a School
Improvement Support Plan that outlines actions to
evaluate and improve the use of the Pupll
Development Grant (PDG). Nearly all schools
have shown that the PDG positively impacts pupil
progress.

Page 36

Page 36




Marmot Recommendations

BRAG

Commentary

MP2.3 - Focus the pupil
development grant to
improve attainment of pupils
eligible for free school meals
to reduce the gap in
attainment.

MP2.4 - Assess inequalities
in affordable travel to
school, improve data
collection.

Each Local Authority's School Improvement
Support Plan details the actions that will be taken
to evaluate and improve the use of the PDG.

Many schools can demonstrate how the PDG has
had a positive impact on pupil progress.

MP2.6 - Healthy Schools
scheme in primary and
secondary schools shifts to
proportionate offer to schools
that have higher number of
students eligible for free
school meals and where
there are pockets of
deprivation.

No related information on progress received from
the initial exercise.

See related update MP1.3 above.

MP2.7 - In partnership with
young people, businesses
and the Third Sector, assess
provision of career guidance
and aspiration approaches
in primary and secondary
schools.

Only ‘RAG’ status provided. No related
information on progress received from the initial
exercise.

MP2.8 - Work with young
people to better communicate
available youth services and
future youth services.

All local authorities are working and engaging with
children and young people to shape current and
future Youth Services to a certain extent, as part
of their existing Youth Services provision. South
Wales Fire and Rescue Service is also focussing
on offering a broad spectrum of youth intervention
activity. This includes interventions for young
people referred from Youth Offending Trusts and
Pupil Referral Units, as well as targeting activity in
areas of high ASB and fire setting and have future
plans for Youth Forum participation to consider a
range of community safety topics.

MP2.11 - Reduce duplication
and provide consistent offer
of mental health supportin
schools.

Proportionate offer of support according to
number of students eligible for free school meals
and where there are pockets of deprivation.

Page 37

Page 37




Marmot Recommendations

BRAG | Commentary

MP2.12 - Assess and reduce
inequalities in school
absences.

Each Local Authority's School Improvement
Support Plan outlines the specific actions that will
be taken to share best practices in addressing
inequalities in educational attainment.

MP2.13 - Schools and
Education Achievement
Service share best practice
and leadership in addressing
inequalities in education
attainment.

See related update MP2.12 above.

SY17 - In early years adopt
shared system records
between health and social
care.

Early Years Team sits in Education in Caerphilly
and do share information between Education and
Social Care as needed. An Information Sharing
Protocols has been developed and approved but
not yet started for sharing information between
Health and Education.

The Early Years Team will continue to work with
relevant Health Team to ensure information can be
shared to support all families across the borough,
with an aim for antenatal notifications to be shared
by October 2024.

Page 38

Page 38




Performance Measures, Indicators & Metrics

The Health Board’s Gwent Joint Strategic Assessment (JSA) Team have agreed to provide
data to support establishing a regional baseline against the ‘Best Start in Life’ AoF, as well
providing historic values/trends for those indicators where available (Provided in Appendix 3).

Risks and Barriers to Risk Commentary on mitigating actions / support
Delivery Level |required

The exercise has shown that Efforts should be made to raise awareness and
the 2023-24 Marmot ensure that these recommendations are
recommendations from the integrated in organisational strategies and
Building a Fairer Gwent report service area work programmes across PSB
have not yet been fully organisations.

embedded into working

practices or action plans

throughout PSB organisations.

There were six National Low As the PSB progresses interaction with relevant

recommendations associated
to Best Start in Life aimed at
national organisations like
Welsh Government and Public
Health Wales.

national bodies should be prioritised.

Next Steps & Plans for next reporting period

That a ‘Best Start in Life’ report is presented back to the PSB after six months (circa Mar
2025) by the identified Lead to outline further progress made for this Area of Focus.

Page 39

Page 39




OVERARCHING INTEGRATION MATRIX

Y

PSB Area of Focus

Give every child the
best start in life

Everyone has the same
economic chances

Everyone lives in a place
they feel safe

Everyone lives in a climate-
ready community where
environment is valued and
protected

0t abed

Give Every Child the
Best Start in Life

Create Fair Employment
and Good Work for All

Tackle Racism,
Discrimination and their
Outcomes

Pursue Environmental
Sustainability and Health
Equity Together

Marmot
Principles

Enable all Children, Young People and Adults to
Maximise their Capabilities and have Control over their
Lives

Communities

Create and Develop Healthy and Sustainable Places and




=

In L ife In d icators @nr

(based on latest available data August 202Y) N
@(‘N.O% Wales) >< ne
. , 5 $8°7
of WIOtherS SMOklng ’ (2'5/0 Wales) (898% WG|QS)

at birth e

8.9
" (89.6% Woales)

23

o e
og &hillsolren 2\
a e - an‘S o L, ]
Iivinggwith ovérweigl«t % gg -~

or obesity

years years

(15.2 Wales) ﬁ‘
W 4 (78.0 years Wales)  (62.6 years Wales)
: | A
e @ \ years a7 years
@ (Wales 15.5%) N

@ (Wales 19.3%) == " (81.8 years Wales) (6.6 years Wales)




st

8.7

8.y

coveraqge of
6-in-l Vaccine
Aged | Year

coverage of
Y-in-I Pre—Scl«ool
Booster Aged
5 Years

coverage of

MMR 2 Doses
Aged 5 Years

949%
93%
9294
91%
90%
89%
88%
87%
869%

6 in 1 Vaccine (age 1 year)
Jan2024-Mar2024

94.0%

Wales

Gwent

4 in 1 Pre-school booster (age 5 years) uptake
2019 to 2024 quarter 1

A

4\/.\\/&\\/ \A/\ R

Cover period

== CGwent Wales

MMR 2 doses (age 5 years) uptake 2019 to
2024 quarter 1

Cover period

=a—Gwent Wales

Data For: lan2024-Mar2024
Area Immunisation Uptake
Mewport 89.7%
Torfaen 91.5%
Blaenau Gwent 93.2%
Monmouthshire 94.2%
EEEﬂ}hI"‘y’ 95. E*}E
Wales
Data For: Jan2024-Mar2024
Area Immunisation Uptake
Newport 84.4% ‘; ;J,
Torfaen 86.5% * Lo '
Blaenau Gwent 91.2% N
Caerphilly 91.7% ‘ "
Monmouthshire 93, E%
& =
Wales
Data For: lan2024-Mar2024
Area Immunisation Uptake
Mewport 85.2%
Torfaen 85.3%
Caerphilly 90.8%
Blaenau Gwent 91.2%
Monmouthshire 93.2%
Gwent 88.4%
Wales 89.6%




SCHOOL

||
H
Percentage of total pupils eligible for free school meals Data For: 11]13.}14
excluding those transitionally protected 2017/18-2023/24 -
\q 7 ook Percentage of total pupils
eligible for free school
of upuls eligible 2+ Area meals 2023/24
‘[or (V‘%e |2C ool — Blaenau Gwent 21.9%
meale Caerphilly 22.3%
Lo Monmouthshire 11.6%
S0 Mewport 19.3%
Torfaen 20.7%
e 2017/18  2018/19  2019/20  2020/21  2021/22  2022/23  2023/24 Gwent 19.7%
Wales =ae=Gwent Wales 19.3%
Percentage uptake of total pupils having free Data For: 2021/22

school meals 2017/18-2021/22 Percentageuftutal |:lll|:lli|5

taking free school meals

o, Area 2021/22
i
— / Blaenau Gwent 13.9%

20%

oo Caerphilly 15.3%

Monmouthshire 10.5%

of (P llS tL\ klng Y Newport 15.8%

ree SC ) Torfaen 17.6%
meals

0% 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 WHIEE 15.5%

Wales =mbmGwent



3

&

of children aged Y-5
years living with
overweight or obesity

of children living in

relative low

income families

35%

30%

25%

20%

15%

10%

5%

0%

30%

25%

20%

15%

10%

5%

0%

Percentage of children aged 4-5 years recorded as living
with overweight or obesity 2018/19 to 2022/23
(No data 2019/20 due to the pandemic)

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

gy Govent Wales

Percentage of children aged under 16 in relative low
income families in Gwent, financial years ending 2019-
2023

/\‘

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

- Gwent Wales

Data For: 2022/23
Living With Overweight
Area Or Obese (%)
Blaenau Gwent 26.6%
Torfaen 25.4%
Caerphilly 23.0%
MNewport 22.1%
Monmouthshire 18.6%
Gwent 23.0%
Wales 24.8%
Data For: 2023
% Children in relative low
Area income families
Blaenau Gwent 28.1%
Mewport 23.8%
Torfaen 22.5%
Caerphilly 21.8%
Monmouthshire 14.5%

Wales

Gwent 22.2%

21.5%




313

at birth

of mothers smoking §
i

\].3

conception rate pe
,000 women at
ages under |18

oA

20%
18%
16%
14%
12%
10%
8%
6%
4%
2%
0%

25

20

15

10

Percentage of pregnant people recorded as smoking
at birth 2016-2023

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

-G ent Wales

Under 18 Conceptions: Conception rate per 1,000 women
at ages under 18

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

e ENT Wales

Data For: 2021

Conception rate per 1,000

Area women at ages under 18
Blaenau Gwent 21.9
Caerphilly 19.3
Newport 18.3
Torfaen 14.7
Monmouthshire 11.0
Gwent 17.3
Wales 15.2




g

8. z Years ) Life Expectancy At Birth by Gender 2016-2018 to 2020-2022 Data For: 2020-2022
Life Ex At | Life Ex At
of female life = - a — iy - " hpectan::v - Tmlm
GXPGC(’.GV\CY at birth o —a Area Birth Females Birth Males
. Blaenau Gwent 79.3 76.4
o Caerphilly 80.6 76.8
) 78 — — =". g Monmouthshire 84.1 80.9
=
.- Newport 8l.1 F7.4
77.7 Years 26 Torfaen 31.0 77.6
of male life - Gwent 81.2 77.7
. 2016-2018 2017-2019 2018-2020 2019-2021 2020-2022
expeCtanCy at blrth =dr=| ifa Expectancy At Birth ==Life Expectancy At Birth ===Life Expectancy At Birth Life Expectancy At Birth W'EI'EE 31'3 ?ﬂ'ﬂ
Females - Gwent Females - Wales Males - Gwent Males - Wales
Healthy Life Expectancy (HLE) At Birth by Gender 2014-2016 to 2020-2022 Data For: 2020-2022
2019-2021 & 2020-22 data for G i ilabl . .
Due to mirEor method and data sou?mf: cﬁ;n;i?iigt;]?;f;aelaﬁtheéoards and H'E'ﬂlth"' Life H'E'ﬂlth"' Life
58 q ears Local Authorities in this indicator is not comparable to th
. A l« 4 Expectancy At Expectancy At
I (eoe‘c Feegnca ) ealtt Y — Area Birth Females Birth Males
| X an Qa r
P Y . — Blaenau Gwent 56.5 55.6
- S Caerphilly 57.0 56.7
o M Monmouthshire 69.3 6&.7
59
. Mewport 38.1 60.7
(60 ‘l Yﬁa'ish 7 Torfaen 55.3 60.7
of male healt . _
ll(e expectancy at blrtk ” 2014-2016 2015-2017 2016-2018 2017-2019 2018-2020 2019-2021 2020-2022 Gwent 8.9 60.1
2N\ BN TE. B AEHINARSRS] Wales L Lo

—

|

SE'S

- 7
)
!
\
R

)

///[;/
W
)



Agenda Item 7

.
- -

—== 7

"*«.,\

Ell.ﬁ.'rcjnt 3N IR L Y MIOEOLS

SUBJECT: Appointment of Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson of the Gwent

MEETI
DATE:

Report

1.1

2.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Public Services Board Scrutiny Committee
NG: Gwent Public Services Board Scrutiny Committee
11th September 2024

written and submitted by: Sarah King, GSWAG Lead

Areas Affected

All Local Authority areas of Gwent have Member representation on the Gwent
Public Services Board Scrutiny Committee and partner organisations: South
Wales Fire and Rescue Service, Gwent Voluntary Organisations and Aneurin
Bevan University Health Board.

Purpose of Report

The purpose of the report is to appointment the Chairperson and Vice-
Chairperson of the Gwent Public Services Board Scrutiny Committee for the
2024/2025 cycle of meetings.

Background
In June 2023, the Committee agreed its Terms of Reference.

The Terms of Reference state that the Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson is to
be appointed annually and rotated alphabetically by Local Organisation /
Organisation.

For the 2023/24 cycle of meetings the Chairperson was elected from Blaenau
Gwent County Borough Council and the Vice-Chairperson was elected from
Caerphilly County Borough Council.

The GAVO representative has been approached to consider taking on the role of
the Vice-Chair, however, due to commitments has declined the offer at this time.

Monmouthshire County Borough Council representatives have now been
approached to take on the role of Vice-Chair. One representative is unable to
take on the role owing to commitments. Currently waiting for a response from
the other representative.

Page 47

Page 47



a’-:f-E""“‘:u\\

4

6.1

5.1

E.ll'ﬁ.'rcir-ltuu. . TRELE Y MOeROLS

Recommendations

It is, therefore, recommended that the Gwent Public Services Board Scrutiny
Committee:

(i) Agree that the Chairperson for the 2024/25 cycle of meetings will be
Councillor Shane Williams (Caerphilly County Borough Council; and
(i) Agree the Vice-Chairperson for the 2024/25 cycle of meeting.

Next Steps

A review of the Gwent Public Services Board Scrutiny Committee and its Terms
of Reference will be undertaken in December 2024 and the outcome of the
review will be presented to the Scrutiny Committee and the Public Services
Board.

Page 48

Page 48



	Agenda
	1 Gwent Public Services Board Scrutiny Committee - Wednesday, 11th September, 2024 2.00 pm
	Agenda
	4 Gwent Public Services Board Scrutiny Committee
	COUNTY BOROUGH OF BLAENAU GWENT
	Blaenau Gwent
	Councillor E. Jones
	Torfaen
	Councillor D.H. Williams
	Councillor R. Seabourne
	Monmouthshire
	Councillor P. Jones
	Councillor A. Watts
	Caerphilly
	Councillor A. Angel
	Councillor S. Williams
	Newport CC
	Councillor F. Hussain
	WITH:		Aneurin Bevan University Health Board
	Joanne Foley
	South Wales Fire & Rescue
	Steve O’Connell
	Natural Resource Wales
	Blaenau Gwent CBC
	Sarah King
	Andrew Parker
	David Arnold
	Liz Thomas
	Torfaen CBC
	Rebecca Fahey-Jones
	Kelly Hayes
	Monmouthshire CBC
	Sharran Lloyd
	Robert McGowan
	Hazel Ilett
	Richard Jones
	Newport CC
	Wayne Tucker
	Leanne Rowlands
	Caerphilly CBC
	Heather Delonette
	Cath Forbes-Thompson

	5 Gwent Well-being Plan Annual Report
	Appendix 1
	Annual Report 2024
	Introduction
	Background
	Gwent Well-being Plan
	We want to create a fairer, more equitable and inclusive Gwent for all.
	‘Building a Fairer Gwent’ – Gwent Marmot Region
	Case Study
	We want a climate-ready Gwent, where our environment is valued and protected, benefitting our well-being now and for future generations.
	Responding to the Climate and Nature emergency
	Public Engagement and Planning
	Preparing to Respond to the Climate and Nature Emergencies

	Arrangements to Support the Gwent PSB
	Case Study
	Collaboration: Challenges and Complexities of working as a region.
	What’s Worked Well
	Complexities
	Challenges

	Case Study
	Case Study
	Gwent Public Services Board Areas of Focus and Workshops
	Introduction
	Workshop Objectives
	Attendees and Participation
	Workshop Structure and Facilitation
	Themes and Priorities
	1. That every child has the best start in life
	2. That everyone has the same economic chances
	3. That everyone lives in a place they feel safe
	4. That everyone lives in a climate ready community where their environment is valued and protected

	Findings

	Partnerships
	Third Sector
	Community Safety Review

	Case Study
	Involvement and Engagement
	Imagining Healthy Futures project
	Training
	Capacity Building for Climate Change Risk Assessment

	Next steps



	6 Gwent Public Services Board Delivery Framework : Best Start in Life
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3

	7 Appointment of Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson of the Gwent Public Services Board Scrutiny Committee


